
 1 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 

 

CITY OF DANA POINT 

FINANCIAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, MARCH 27, 2017 

4:00 PM 

 

LOCATION: City Hall, Second Floor, City Council Chamber, Suite 210  

         33282 Golden Lantern, Dana Point, CA 92629 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

The meeting of the Financial Review Committee of the City of Dana Point, California, was called 

to order by Chair Brian Porter at 4:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, 33282 Golden Lantern, 

Dana Point. 

 

ROLL CALL OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS:     

 

Present:  Brian Porter, Committee Member 

  Buck Hill, Committee Member 

  Greg Wall, Committee Member 

  Larry Rolapp, Committee Member 

  Toni Nelson, Committee Member 

 

Absent: None 

  

STAFF: 

 

 Mike Killebrew, Acting City Manager 

 Patrick Munoz, City Attorney 

 Beverly Brion, Accounting Supervisor 

 DyAnne Weamire, Sr. Administrative Assistant 

  

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

1. Minutes of Financial Review Committee meeting, February 27, 2017 

   

Member Nelson stated that she had a correction on page 6 of the minutes, which reads 

“Committee Member Nelson stated that she just received a message from the Mayor.  The 

message from the Mayor to Member Nelson stated that she hoped the meeting was going 

well…”  Member Nelson explained that she subsequently showed the actual message to Chair 



 2 

Porter which shows that the text message from the Mayor to Member Nelson actually stated 

that “she hoped the meeting went well” and would like to correct the minutes to reflect that 

change.   

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew explained that the actual statement per the recording was as 

written in the minutes.  

 

Member Nelson explained that the wording of the minutes caused an issue at the last City     

Council meeting and would like the public record to show what was actually texted by Mayor 

Lewis to Member Nelson and not what Member Nelson stated the Mayor texted. Member 

Nelson explained that the Mayor had texted her during the meeting but Mayor Lewis thought 

the meeting had ended.    

 

City Attorney Munoz explained that the Committee could vote to amend the minutes but 

technically speaking the correct thing to do is approve the minutes as they are and then indicate 

in today’s meeting minutes that there was an error in the minutes that Member Nelson wants to 

correct to reflect what the minutes should of said. 

 

Member Nelson stated that is fine. 

 

Chair Porter asked for a motion to approve February 27, 2017 minutes. 

 

City Attorney Munoz reiterated that the Committee would be voting on approving the minutes 

as they are, with today’s meeting minutes reflecting the conversation that was had.  

 

Member Nelson stated that she could not approve the minutes as they are because they are not 

correct. 

 

City Attorney Munoz stated that the minutes are correct. 

 

Member Rolapp made a motion to approve. 

 

Chair Porter asked for a second. 

 

Vice Chair Hill stated that the minutes were not approved. 

 

Chair Porter stated that the problem is that what was said is on the recording. 

 

Member Nelson stated that she has not heard the recording. She stated that she asked for the 

recording but that she did not get it. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that the City has an audio for the purpose of keeping 

minutes. He explained that he listened to the recording and that they were typed in the exact 

words that were heard on the recording. 

 

Member Nelson said that she misspoke so she would like to make that correction.  

 

Chair Porter suggested to approve the minutes because it was verbatim to what the dialogue 

was. 

 



 3 

City Attorney Munoz suggested that the Committee make a motion to approve the minutes and 

to ask that they reflect today’s motion, that they should have said “the meeting went well” 

instead of “the meeting is going well.” 

 

Member Rolapp said that he would like to modify his motion to incorporate those changes. 

 

Member Wall seconded the motion. 

 

THE FRC committee unanimously voted to add Committee Member Nelson’s amendment to 

the February 27, 2017 minutes as follows in reference to the first paragraph: 

 

(Amendment: During the March 27, 2017 Financial Review Committee meeting, Member 

Nelson explained that she wanted to correct the second line of the above paragraph to read: “the 

meeting went well” instead of “the meeting was going well” which is what she meant to say.)  

 

MOTION MADE BY MEMBER ROLAPP AND SECONDED BY MEMBER WALL TO 

APPROVE THE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 27, 2017 WITH AMENDMENTS 

 

    The motion was carried by the following vote: 

 

    AYES: Chair Porter, Vice-Chair Hill, Member Wall, Member Rolapp, Member Nelson. 

    NAYS: None 

    ABSTENTION: None 

 

2. City Council Resolution 17-03-07-01 Amending the Membership, Duties, and    

Responsibilities of the Financial Review Committee. 

 

Member Hill asked why none of the tasks discussed to review and consider in the February 27, 

2017 meeting are reflected in the minutes or on the March 27, 2017 agenda.  

 

Chair Porter responded that following the Committee’s February 27th meeting, Council 

received the Resolution (item #2). Council then had dialogue based upon the Committee’s initial 

meeting and returned the Resolution giving direction to the Committee based on their 

interpretation.  Item #2 is City Council’s Resolution 17-03-07-01 amending the membership, 

duties, and responsibilities of the FRC. The Resolution will now be the direction of the 

Committee moving forward. 

 

Vice Chair Hill asked if we need a motion on that. 

 

Chair Porter answered yes. 

 

MOTION MADE BY VICE CHAIR HILL AND SECONDED BY MEMBER NELSON 

TO RECEIVE AND FILE THE CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 17-03-07-01 

AMENDING THE MEMBERSHIP, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE 

FINANCIAL REVIEW COMMITTEE. 

 

The motion was carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Chair Porter, Vice Chair Hill, Member Wall, Member Rolapp, Member Nelson 

NAYS: None 



 4 

ABSTENTION: None 

 

3.  City Accounting Structure Overview (Presentation) 

 

Chair Porter asked the Committee if they were agreeable to allowing Toni Nelson and Buck 

Hill to provide presentations that they had prepared for the meeting prior to discussing Item #3. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that this agenda item was based on last meeting’s 

discussion regarding where to direct the Committee’s efforts moving forward.  However, prior 

to the Agenda being posted, Member Nelson expressed an interest on providing a presentation 

and subsequently, Vice-Chair Hill expressed his interest on also providing a presentation.  

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that he will leave the decision of listening to the 

presentations up to the Committee. 

 

Chair Porter responded that due to the time and effort both Members Nelson and Hill gave to 

their presentations he would like to allow them to present and if there was sufficient time the 

Committee could address the remaining items on the agenda. If there was not enough time today 

then the remaining agenda items could be addressed at a future meeting. 

 

Member Nelson provided a 20-minute PowerPoint presentation entitled: City of Dana Point 

Financial Overview (Exhibit A) 

 

Chair Porter asked if any Members had any questions. 

 

Vice-Chair Hill stated that Member Nelson made many suggestions and suggested that the 

Committee discuss the whole thing. 

 

Chair Porter asked if there was anything in particular that anyone wanted to discuss regarding 

Member Nelson’s presentation so that it could be discussed before Vice-Chair Hill’s 

presentation. 

 

Vice-Chair Hill stated that he liked Member Nelson’s recommendations found on pages 22 and 

23 of her presentation.  Adoption of monthly and accrual accounting he understands is a big 

task so that task might not be feasible, but he continued that he feels we have been going down 

curves and he feels like it is time to do something.  Vice-Chair Hill asked the Committee if they 

would like to discuss the items before a motion is made. 

 

Chair Porter said there would not be a motion at this time.  This is a presentation that the 

Committee views and then the Committee will view Vice-Chair Hill’s presentation and then the 

Committee can have further discussion after all the information is presented.  Chair Porter 

thanked Member Nelson for the tremendous and impressive job she did along with the amount 

of time and effort that she provided towards the presentation. 

 

Member Nelson asked that the presentation be attached to the March 27, 2017 minutes so it is 

part of the Public Record.  (Member Nelson’s presentation is provided as Exhibit A). 

 

Vice-Chair Hill provided a presentation entitled: Financial Review Committee – Concerns and 

Potential Actions (Exhibit B) 

 



 5 

A discussion between Acting City Manager Killebrew and Vice-Chair Hill followed after Vice-

Chair Hill’s interpretation of the City’s costs as compared to other OC Cities for Orange County 

Fire Authority services.  Acting City Manager Killebrew explained that the OCFA is a Joint 

Powers Authority and the City is a member meaning the City has representation on the board, 

but the Authority is a separate legal entity which gets its funding from a portion of property 

taxes paid by City property owners as does the school districts and the City itself.  OCFA 

received approximately 12.4 percent.  These funds are restricted solely for fire services.  

 

Vice-Chair Hill asked Acting City Manager Killebrew if the funding was totally uncontrollable. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated yes. He continued that if the City decided to drop out of 

the Joint Powers Authority to start its own fire department, we would still be relying on the 

County of Orange to determine how much of our City’s property taxes the City would need to 

pay to cover fire services.  He further stated that his understanding is that the redistribution of 

taxes would be a great discussion to have, but the reality is even if the City could save $5 million 

by having its own fire department the City wouldn’t have an extra $5 million to spend on other 

resources it is still required to spend it on fire services. 

 

City Attorney Munoz further explained that this is a very complex issue that the City of Irvine 

has been dealing with for a number of years, including litigation that has gone to the Court of 

Appeals and is a presentation on its own of a couple of hours. 

 

Vice-Chair Hill asked that the item be bracketed as an item to look at. 

 

Member Nelson asked if the revenue is a percentage of our property tax base and asked if it was 

possible that our costs are higher because we have a higher tax base. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that when the Joint Powers Authority was established 

the decision that was made was that about 12.4 percent of every dollar paid goes to the Fire 

Authority and it is different for every city.  

 

Member Nelson asked why that would be. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that was what was decided at the time of the 

establishment of the Authority.  He continued that if you took the costs of the two fire stations 

within the City which isn’t necessarily the full cost of service because those stations don’t just 

service our City, but the cost of the two fire stations is approximately $10 million.  

 

Vice-Chair Hill stated that there is an urgency about this. He continued that the City of Irvine 

has tendered a notice to withdraw from the Agency and the City of Dana Point has an 

opportunity to do so as well but it has to be done before July of this year, because it’s a 10-year 

contract and runs through 2020.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that if we had a financially viable option to leave 

the Fire Authority we would be having those discussions, but there frankly isn’t one and 

reminded Vice-Chair Hill that there is a restriction to what the funds can be spent on and that 

the money can only be spent on fire services. If you want to increase the level of fire services 

that are provided and fight with the County to receive the City’s full share then we can, but if it 

costs $10 million for those two fire stations, that’s what we’re going to get, not $12 million. 

 



 6 

Vice-Chair Hill responded the contract runs for 10 years and if the City doesn’t notice this year, 

the contract will run through 2030. Member Hill believes that this should be reviewed soon.  He 

continued that the OCFA has an Unfunded Pension Liability of $518 million and is being funded 

over 30 years and is concerned about a huge increase coming at some point.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew reminded him that this number is not in the City’s General 

Fund budget.  

 

Member Nelson stated that she understands that, but it’s the underlying pension liability and 

asked if the City of Irvine pulls out of the Joint Powers Authority would the City of Dana Point 

become more responsible for the cost of pensions and asked if it was a risk.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew explained that it is a legal question that is out there, but from 

everything he has seen to date, he does not believe so. 

 

Vice-Chair Hill continued with his presentation beginning with Legal Fees, with litigation in 

the budget for City Attorney estimated just over $700K, but then increased to $1.3 million in 

the latest budget revision, and raised the question on how this can be accomplished more 

economically.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that regarding litigation the City had added $300K 

to the litigation budget last month for items, but in particular for the Strands/Headlands 

litigation. 

 

Member Rolapp asked if any of the legal costs are reimbursable.  

 

City Attorney Munoz responded that there is currently about $100K that the City will be 

reimbursed for.  

 

Member Nelson asked if the City records those receivables as a receivable in the Financial 

Statements.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that he has not been recording some of the 

receivables until he is positive the City receives the funds.   

 

Vice-Chair Hill continued his presentation regarding Monthly Activity Report. Member Rolapp 

asked if the report being presented is an internal document.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that it is an internal report.  Vice-Chair Hill stated 

he had requested and received this report to show cash outlays on a monthly basis for 12 months, 

which includes accruals in the 12th month. 

 

Member Rolapp asked with regards to cash management do you use this report to determine 

whether or not you’re running close to your budgets on a periodic basis. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that the City monitors its budgets on a monthly basis 

and reports quarterly, with a summary for the public which shows all expenses, attorneys’ costs, 

cash outlays year-to-date, professional services contracts, etc.  Vice-Chair Hill requested this 

detailed report but it wasn’t intended to have a Management Discussion alongside it.  

 



 7 

Member Nelson asked if the quarterly report that is given to Council is given on an accrual basis 

or cash.  Acting City Manager Killebrew responded it was done on a cash basis. 

 

Member Nelson asked if the City then only accrues at the end of the year.  Acting City Manager 

Killebrew answered yes. He went on to suggest that if the Committee wanted to discuss accruals 

he would suggest the Sheriff’s contract, payroll, City Attorney bills, and County bills.  Member 

Nelson said that she believes that accrual reporting would be more useful to the Council.  

 

Vice-Chair Buck Hill refers the Committee to page 12 of 14 to look at his favorite legal expense. 

He stated that the costs are goofy. September shows $252K, October shows $0. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew explained that was up to three months of legal bills being paid 

all in one time.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew made a suggestion that going forward, so we are not trying to 

figure out what is being questioned as a Committee, is to call and provide information and 

questions ahead of time to walk through it, allow for research and provide some advice so we 

could have an informed conversation that does not wander around a lot. He stated there is a lot 

of information to cover and understands the desire to start accruing more frequently than 

annually.  

 

Vice-Chair Hill wanted Acting City Manager Killebrew to confirm that the City’s current 

accounting system does not have monthly budget buckets.  Acting City Manager Killebrew 

confirmed that it does not. 

 

Vice-Chair Hill indicated to Chair Porter that was the end of his presentation. He addressed the 

Committee and asked them to take a look at some of the expenses that they might be interested 

in, see the variability, and to see what items can be leveled and what expenses are predictable 

and unpredictable.   

 

Chair Porter stated that one thing that he noted was the cost of the Orange County Sheriff’s, 

then divided by the number of City residents to come up with cost per capita.  He also stated 

that Member Nelson’s presentation shows the number one revenue is tourism. He suggested 

that if the number of hotel rooms in the community are considered along with the number of 

the City’s residents, the per capita number goes way down, and in addition to all the Special 

Events within the City he believes this pulls in more police activity to the City to cover the 

events. 

 

Member Nelson stated that we should compare those numbers with other higher tourism cities 

such as Anaheim and Laguna Beach.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that we are probably somewhat comparable with 

agencies but the difference is they have their own Police Departments and having your own 

police department is going to be more expensive then the OC Sheriff’s department.  He further 

explained we pay for a premium level of service in this City. The City Council can debate what 

level of service they think the City should have, and it being a third of our budget it is worthy 

of debate.  

 



 8 

Chair Porter thanked Vice Chair Hill on the excellent job he did on the presentation. (His 

presentation is attached as Exhibit B to the minutes). He then asked if it were true that the City 

does not have a seat at the County to negotiate with the Sheriff’s.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that the City does not. The County Board of 

Supervisors manages all contract negotiations for the Sheriff. 

 

Vice-Chair Hill asked Acting City Manager Killebrew if the Sheriff’s contract is a one-year 

contract as opposed to the 10-year contract with the OCFA.  Acting City Manager Killebrew 

responded yes.  

 

Chair Porter thanked both Vice-Chair Hill and Member Nelson for their time and effort. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew thanked and complimented both Nelson and Hill, stating there 

was good information provided, but believed that there may be some misunderstandings or 

misconceptions that can easily be worked through.  Acting City Manager Killebrew agrees with 

the comments made that revenues and expenditures lines are ready cross.  The City needs a 

Long-Term Financial Plan and he feels this would be a good place for the Committee to start.  

One critical component that he feels is missing in the budget process is a line item for Capital 

Reinvestment Program and a Facility Maintenance Program. 

 

Member Wall asked if most of our larger infrastructure expenses are behind us. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded no, and expressed concern about what the normal 

investment should be as an annual contribution to the capital program. He stated he would like 

to see a Capital Improvement Investment policy that lays out the plan and dollar amounts. 

 

Member Rolapp brought up the City of San Clemente’s Long-Term Financial Plan.  He said it 

is reviewed annually and reviewed prior to the budget.  This serves as a part of the budgetary 

process. The City also has a two-year budget. Has it ever been a thought to creating a rolling 

two year budget? 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew responded that the two year budget has been occurring since 

before he has been at the City. He stated that the City does a mid-year correction. This could be 

discussed within the Long Term Financial Plan.  He continued that he had put together a 5-year 

plan this last budget cycle, without policies to guide him, and he believes this would be a good 

starting point for the Committee to work from and to provide direction. 

 

Member Rolapp said he would endorse this. 

 

Chair Porter suggested we calendar the next FRC meeting. 

 

Chair Porter stated he wants to get the next date scheduled for the FRC meeting and to have 

Members Nelson and Hill meet with Acting City Manager Killebrew to go over the information 

they presented with him and have Member Nelson and Member Rolapp meet with Acting City 

Manager Killebrew to discuss long-term financial planning.   

 

Member Nelson stated that it was important for the Council to hear and understand the numbers 

provided at this meeting and that they need to hear that the revenue and expenditure numbers 

are in danger of meeting and it will inform them how to manage their budget.  She also 



 9 

suggested that before the next meeting that they take a look at Revenue and brainstorm in groups 

of two for Brown Act purposes and try to figure out if there is anything that can be done to 

increase revenue as a suggestion possibly TOT.  She stated that she believes a lot of cities charge 

more than 10%. 

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that Member Nelson was talking about raising TOT 

revenue that would involve a ballot measure. He stated that he appreciates her energy and 

intellect but suggested we walk first before we run. He additionally stated that he is okay with 

deferring the Investment Policy to the next meeting. 

 

Vice Chair Hill stated that the Investment Policy has been the same for a long time and it just 

doesn’t seem urgent at all because it’s very safe.  Acting City Manager Killebrew responded 

that the Investment Policy states that the Committee will review the policy every year and make 

recommendations to City Council, and we are currently out of compliance with the policy.  

 

Vice-Chair Hill recommends that the Committee make a motion to continue the policy for 6 

months. He continued that he had a couple of more points. This budget is the most critical thing 

going. If we don’t interject we have to change something right now. If the City staff has the 

power and energy to knock down department costs and come up with new revenue sources to 

come up with a $5 million cost surplus next year but to strategizing a 5-year plan policy as a 

major priority he doesn’t see it. 

 

Chair Porter stated that most Cities have 5-year plan forecasts and the Council can decide 

whether or not they want to do this. 

 

Member Nelson suggested that someone else do the long-range plan.  

 

Acting City Manager Killebrew stated that the Committee is not going to have a long range plan 

in the next 90 days, and would appreciate the help with trends and interpretations, but it does 

not have to happen in the next week.  

    

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

There were no Old Business item. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 

There were no Public Comments received. 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS: 

 

Chair Porter asked the Financial Review Committee if there were any closing statements 

 

  



 10 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Chair Porter adjourned the meeting at 5:35 p.m. 

 

Next scheduled meeting will be Monday, April 10, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. in the City Council Chamber 

located at 33282 Golden Lantern, Suite 210, Dana Point, California 

 

 

___________________________________________  

DYANNE C. WEAMIRE, SR. ADMIN. ASSISTANT                    
                     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 11 



 12 



 13 



 14 



 15 



 16 



 17 



 18 



 19 



 20 



 21 



 22 



 23 



 24 



 25 



 26 



 27 



 28 



 29 



 30 



 31 



 32 



 33 



 34 



 35 



 36 



 37 



 38 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 39 

 

Exhibit B 



 40 



 41 



 42 



 43 



 44 



 45 



 46 



 47 



 48 



 49 



 50 



 51 



 52 



 53 



 54 



 55 



 56 



 57 



 58 



 59 



 60 



 61 



 62 



 63 



 64 



 65 



 66 



 67 



 68 



 69 



 70 



 71 



 72 



 73 



 74 



 75 



 76 



 77 



 78 



 79 

 


